
 

 
  
 

Village of Cambridge 
VILLAGE BOARD AGENDA 

Tuesday, October 25, 2016 | 6:30 p.m. 
Cambridge High School, 403 Blue Jay Way, Room 214 

1. Call to order/Roll Call 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Proof of Posting 
4. Public Appearances: 

a. McFarland Senior Outreach Presentation 
b. Library Board – Cambridge Community Library Budget 

5. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Approval of Village Board Minutes: October 11, 2016  
b. Operator’s Licenses:  Carol Farr, Nicholas Johnson: Stop N Go 

 
6. Reports 

a. President’s Report  
b. Water and Sewer Committee 
c. Joint Law Enforcement Committee 
d. Economic Development Director Report 
e. Administrator’s Report 
f. Financial Report 

 
7. Bills  
8. Unfinished Business: 
9. New Business:  Discussion and possible action regarding:  

a. Amundson Center Remodeling  
b. Discussion regarding roles and duties of Village President and Trustees 
c. Amendments 3 and 4 to the Vineyards at Cambridge Developer’s Agreement 
d. Distillery Incentive Agreement 

 
10. Correspondence  
11. Meeting Announcements:  Personnel /Public Works /Audit and Finance Committees, October 31; Library Board, 

Nov 2;  Election Nov 8; Village Board Thursday Nov 10; Plan Commission, Nov 14; Water and Sewer, Nov 15; Village 
Board, Nov 22 

12. Questions, Referrals to Staff or Future Agenda Items 
a. Closed session regarding Village Attorney duties/performance 
b. CSM for RRPCS, LLC  
c. Amundson Parking lot lights 
d. 2017 Budget 
e. League of Wisconsin Municipalities presentation for Municipal Boards : “in the Scope of Your Authority”  
 

13. Adjournment 
 
1) Persons needing special accommodations should call 608-423-3712 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
2) More specific information about agenda items may be obtained by calling608- 423-3712. 
3) Final Village Board agendas are typically posted by 4 PM on the Friday preceding the regular meeting at the Amundson Community Center, 
Cambridge Post Office, Cambridge News office and Cambridge State Bank and Village of Cambridge Web site at www.ci.cambridge.wi.us. 
 
Lisa Moen, Village Clerk  

http://www.ci.cambridge.wi.us/


 

 

 
  
 

Village of Cambridge 
VILLAGE BOARD MINUTES 

Tuesday, October 11, 2016 | 6:30 p.m. 
Oakland Town Hall, N4450 Country Road A 

 
1. Call to order/Roll Call:  President Struss called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Members present:  Trustees:  

Christianson, McNally, Hollenbeck, Kumbier, Mihajlovic and President Struss; Members excused:  Trustee 
Cunningham.  Others present:  Lisa Moen, Veronica Rudychev, Linda Begley Korth:  Village Staff; Travis Hasse; Mary 
Behling; Greg Johnson, Ehlers; Dean Lund; Dwight Christianson. 

 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Proof of Posting:  The Agenda was posted in the upper level of the Amundson Community Center, the Cambridge 

News Office, Cambridge Post Office, United Community Bank and the Village Web Site. 
4. Public Appearances:  Dean Lund has comment on items 9A and 9B.  President Struss said he would be able to speak 

during the agenda items.  
5. Approval of Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Village Board Minutes: September 27, 2016  
b. Approval of Village Board Minutes: September 29, 2016 
c. Operator’s Licenses:  Gary Pfeifer, Stop-N-Go 
d. Establishing Trick or Treat Hours – October 31, 2016, 5:30 – 7:30 p.m. 
e. Appointment of Meg Theno as an Election worker 

 
Trustee Kumbier made a motion to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Trustee Hollenbeck.  Motion carried. 

 
6. Reports 

a. President’s Report:  Gorman will be paying three installments of $500 each so the full amount will be paid 
by years end.  He is working on an agreement/contract with US Cellular. 
 

b. Library Board:  A majority of their discussion was regarding the 2017 budget.  The lights in the parking lot 
have not been working.  Ready Electric has come in and temporarily hooked them up to the library.  The 
Board felt that these lights should be the Villages responsibility. 

 
c. Plan Commission:  Scott Farm CSM is on the agenda, action will be postponed until the next meeting. 

 
d. Audit and Finance Committee:  Met today.  Discussed the Auditing Service, on this agenda. 

 
e. Administrator’s Report:  H&H has started work on the HVAC system.  They have been on premise since 

Monday morning.  The Election work has kept us busy.  There have been a lot of registrations and early 
voters.  There will be a joint Audit/Personnel/Public Works meeting to discuss the budget. 
 

7. Bills        Administrator Rudychev presented the bills in the amount of $125,597.96.  Police services were over 
$44,000.  Other large payments included interest on loans, and road work.  $4,500 was paid to H&H for the work 
they did on creating the plans for the Amundson Center.  It was requested that we keep a running tally of the work 
on the Amundson Center. 

 
Trustee Hollenbeck made a motion to approve the bills in the amount of $125,597.96, seconded by Trustee Kumbier.  Motion 
carried on a 6-0 vote. 
 

8. Unfinished Business:  None 
 



 

 

 
9. New Business:  Discussion and possible action regarding:  

a. Streets in the Winery Development:  This discussion is two-fold:  the bike path and final layer of asphalt on 
the roads in phase one and the final grading of the development.    The 2nd amendment to the developer 
agreement gave them until December 1, 2016 to finish the second layer of asphalt.  Our Engineer, however, 
had requested that it be completed by October 15 to ensure that it isn’t hindered by the weather.  During 
discussions with the Developer, staff was informed that he was not going to do the asphalt, because the 
Village did not approve his apartment plans.  Payne & Doyle did contact us stating that they could do it in 
the end of November.  There is currently $55,000 in an escrow account.  We could use some of this money 
to do the asphalt, leaving enough to cover the light poles if they are not installed.  The remainder of the 
cost could be taken from any incentive payments the Developer would receive from the Village.  Dean Lund 
questioned the weight limits for the roads.  Will they be able to handle the trucks going into the distillery?  
Mr. Hasse did comment that they are to Village standards.  We did accept the first layer with the 
expectation that the second would be done before the snow plowing this year.   
 
The as-built grading was to be completed by the spring of 2016.  The Village engineer has requested the 
plans numerous times, but has not yet received them.   The have been some issues with run off in the 
development.  After discussions between staff, the engineer and the attorney, it is being recommended 
that we freeze all building permits in the development until the grading is completed.  President Struss felt 
that we are financially tying their hands by not allowing them to build.  Trustee Hollenbeck responded that 
they have not met the requirements of the Developer’s Agreement and that we are trying to work with 
them in good faith – both sides have to follow the agreement.  Trustee Christianson commented on the use 
of specific names being used in the agreements.  It was agreed that titles should be used rather than 
names, i.e. the developer, Public Works Director, Village Engineer, etc.   
 

Trustee Hollenbeck made a motion to place a hiatus on issuance of building permits for the Vineyard Development until 
grading work is completed per the Village Engineer’s standards, with the exception of any permits that have already been 
submitted; and that the Village board move to provide until June 1st, 2017 for the completion of the final layer of asphalt to 
the Village Engineer’s standards.  If work is not complete at such time, the village would pursue completion of the work and 
would use a combination of escrow funds and withholding of Development incentive to pay for the work; incentive would be 
withheld until such time as this work is completely paid for, seconded by Trustee Kumbier.  Motion carried.   
 
  Staff was further directed to send communications to the Developer outlining these stipulations. 
 

b. Discussion regarding Distillery Incentive Agreement and Amendments 3 and 4 to the Vineyards at 
Cambridge Developer’s Agreement:  Included in the packet for background and review were the Original 
Developer’s Agreement, 1st and 2nd agreement, proposed amendments 3 and 4, and Proposed distillery 
agreement.  We have been working with Ehlers to look at the budget implications of the whole 
development as a whole.  Greg Johnson has prepared an analysis which is also included in the packet and 
which he presented to the Village board.   
 
Distillery:  The proposal would require the developer to generate taxable value of $800,000 by January 1, 
2017. The assessed value on January 1, 2016, is $445,000.  The Village assessor has estimated that it could 
have a final value of approximately $1.4 million.  The Village would retain the first $3,500 of tax revenue 
from the distillery.   If the $800,000 is achieved, the Village would provide an incentive of $100,000 up 
front, less the $3,000 attorney fees.  The Village would need to borrow these funds.  The Village portion of 
taxes (less the $3,500) would go towards paying $100,000 to the Vineyards developer, for a maximum of 10 
years, after which will till pay up to $200,000 to the Distillery for a maximum of 20 years.  For a home 
valued at $225,000 it is estimated that it will cost the taxpayer an additional $11 on their property taxes to 
fund this proposal.  This will vary for homeowners based on the value of their home.   
 
Distillery Financial Analysis:  Based on an assessed value of $1.4 million, the distillery is projected to 
generate $70,588 over 10 years to apply towards the vineyards infrastructure reimbursement, capped at 
$100,000.  The Village will need to levy a tax to pay for debt service for the $100,000 incentive; the levy will 



 

 

increase an estimated $7,026 per year.  For a home valued at $225,000 it is estimated that it will cost the 
taxpayer an additional $11 on their property taxes.  This will vary for homeowners based on the value of 
their home.  The Village can start recouping levied funds for debt service once the reimbursements to the 
vineyards and the distillery are satisfied, potentially 30 years from now.  It is projected to take until 2059 to 
recoup these costs. 
 
Vineyards:  Greg provided an over view of the original Agreement and the first two amendments.  The 
Village will use tax revenue to pay up to $1,050,000 of public infrastructure costs over 17 years.  Payments 
are scheduled to begin in 2017, upon receipt of documentation of work completed and prices.  Payments 
are capped at the amount of Village taxes generated from the development.  The Developer will pay the 
Village $365,000 for land contributed by the Village.  The Village will withhold 20% of the Village generated 
taxes from the development over 7 years to apply towards the land reimbursement, after the 7 years the 
balance will be paid in full.  The Village was to contribute $200,000 towards acceleration/deceleration 
lanes; these funds have since been reallocated to the Lagoon Road improvements.  These are additional 
funds that will need to be borrowed.  The developer, through Village taxes generated by the development, 
pays the interest only on the funds burrowed.   
 
Amendments 3 & 4:  Proposes that the Village pay for costs associated with bedrock excavation related to 
infrastructure work. It was further proposed that the Village not allow other property developers to 
connect to infrastructure funded by the developer without reimbursement to the vineyard developer for 
these costs.   The cost is not defined and left blank.  An estimated cost is $20,000.  States that the Distillery 
in not included as part of the properties where Village tax revenue is paying the infrastructure costs up to 
$1,050,000.  However, the proposed distillery incentive agreement states this parcel is paying up to 
$100,000 towards the infrastructure at the vineyards.   
 
Vineyards financial analysis:   The assessed value of the vineyards development as of 1/1/2016 is 
$1,791,000.  Projection of tax revenue going forward is based on 3 single family homes constructed per 
year, and the two condo units already approved.  This is based on the amount of homes built in the last 
year.  Over 17 years, the projected amount applied towards the vineyards infrastructure reimbursement is 
$979,412.  This combined with the $70,588 projected from the distillery would satisfy the $1,050,000. A tax 
levy will be required to pay the debt service; this is projected to increase the levy on average $22,000 per 
year.  For a home valued at $225,000 it is estimated that it will cost the taxpayer an additional $34 on their 
property taxes.  The Village can start recouping levied funds for debt service once the reimbursements to 
the vineyards are satisfied, potentially 17 years from now.  It is projected to take until 2035 to recover 
these costs. 
 
Impact on Debt Capacity:  The Village currently has 61% of its borrowing capacity remaining, or $2.7 
million.  If these incentives are funded, projected projects including $200,000 for the Amundson Center and 
$1,000,000 for HWY PQ, the Village would reach 72% of its borrowing limit.  It is not recommended to 
exceed that amount.  These agreements, both those already passed and those proposed, would require the 
Village to borrow funds.  The only revenue source identified in the agreements is the Village’s portion of tax 
revenue generated from these developments.  If this revenue is insufficient to cover these commitments, 
the Village would need to levy taxes on all Village taxpayers to cover any shortfalls.  The prioritization of 
how the tax revenue is pledged in these agreements is weighted in favor of the developers.  Other than the 
$3,500 withheld from the distillery and 20% of taxes generated from the vineyards withheld for 7 years to 
go towards the land reimbursement, the payments go first to the developer.  The Village is left to fund the 
debt service requirement and there is no obligation to the developers to cover these costs, putting more 
risk on the Village.   
 
Discussion ensued.  Numerous questions were raised.   

 Trustee McNally – Was in favor of and questioned the need for outside legal review.  There are 
multiple agreements/amendments, some passed/some proposed, all intertwined.  How do they all 
work together?   

 $20,000 figure?  There have been no invoices provided. It is all lumped together with the project 



 

 

costs.  Questioned if they could break this down.   

 Discussions that we pay cost, place a lien or include in the $1,050,000.  Questions on how we can 
place a lien on future developments.  President Struss provided the example with the Kenseth lift 
station.  However, we owned the land.  This would be two private land owners.  Are future 
developments in the Village limits?   

 Dean Lund shared his concerns of the increased tax levy.  The school will be having a referendum; 
there are other taxing entities, the Village’s levy for general spending could all add to the tax bill as 
well.   

 Trustee McNally had a number of questions.  Again questioned the possible need for outside legal 
review. 
 

Trustee McNally made a motion to retain outside legal counsel to review the distillery agreement, and the vineyard 
agreement and amendments, seconded by Trustee Christianson.  Motion failed with Trustees McNally and Christianson 
voting aye, Hollenbeck, Kumbier and Struss voting in the negative, and Mihajlovic abstaining.   
 

 Greg Johnson clarified that debt service would come out of the general fund.  Taxes collected from 
the project would first go to the developers, with the exception of the $3,500 that is retained. 

 Trustee Hollenbeck questioned who approved the bedrock, the Amendment states that the Village 
wished for this to happen.  Staff responded that no action was taken by the board.  They will 
research this to verify. 

 Money had promised to both entities, the 4th amendment allows for the distillery agreement. 

 McNally questioned the language of owners of the vineyards- what if new owners took over.  Mary 
Behling clarified that there is language that all successors would be included.   

 Statement of purpose – best use of lots. 

 Binder layer has been accepted.  In the original agreement the 2nd layer was to be complete in 
2015, amendment 2 pushed it back to December 1, 2016.  This was the reason for this evening’s 
discussion and action. 

 McNally questioned the Surety Bond.  The second amendment allowed for escrow on the lots sold 
rather than a surety bond.  10% of the lot sale shall be placed in escrow.   
 

These amendments and the Distillery Agreement will be placed on the next agenda.  Staff was directed to work 
with the attorney and the developer on the bedrock amendment.  Look at options of including it as part of the 
$1,050,000 public improvements, or if it could be worked with payments and/or liens.   

 
c. Scott Farms CSM:  Richard Scott is having the surveyor add an access easement to the east side of the 

parcel.  It will be brought before the board when it is ready.  Plan Commission did recommend this action. 
 
Trustee Hollenbeck made a motion to postpone for reasons described, seconded by Trustee Kumbier.  Motion carried. 
 

d. Auditing services RFP:  The Audit and Finance Committee met prior to the Village Board meeting.  We had 
received 4 responses to the RFP:  Kerber Rose, Baker Tilly, Johnson Block and Hawkins Ash.  Administrator 
Rudychev gave an overview of the process and the proposals, including an explanation on how she came to 
her recommendation of accepting the proposal from Baker Tilly.  This is an increase over the amount we 
are currently paying for our auditor, Jim Frechette.  Audit and Finance did recommend approval of the 
Baker Tilly proposal.  

 
Trustee   Kumbier made a motion to approve the Baker Tilly for our auditing service for the next three years at the price 
quoted, seconded by Trustee Hollenbeck.  Motion carried on a unanimous vote. 
 

e. Cambridge Resolution 2016-11 – Dane County Library 2017 funding Resolution:  These resolutions are 
acted on annually to allow us to receive County funds.  It makes us aware of the numbers. 

 
Trustee Kumbier made a motion to approve Resolution 2016-11, relating to 2017 Dane County Library Funding, seconded by 
Trustee Hollenbeck.  Motion carried on a unanimous vote. 



 

 

 
f. Cambridge Resolution 2016-12 – Jefferson County Library 2017 funding  Resolution: 

 
 
 
 
Trustee Hollenbeck made a motion to approve Resolution 2016-12, relating to 2017 Jefferson County Library Funding, 
seconded by Trustee Mihajlovic.  Motion carried on a unanimous vote. 
 

10. Correspondence:  None 
 

11. Meeting Announcements:  Water and Sewer, Oct 18; Joint Law Enforcement, Oct 25; Village Board Oct 25,; Library 
Board, Nov 2;  Election Nov 8; Village Board Thursday Nov 10; Plan Commission, Nov 14; Personnel /Public Works 
/Audit and Finance Committees TBD 

 
12. Questions, Referrals to Staff or Future Agenda Items 

a. McFarland Senior Outreach presentation 
b. Library Board – Cambridge Community Library budget 
c. Distillery Agreement 
d. Amendments 3 and 4 to the Vineyards Agreement 

 
Keystone listening session will be cancelled due to the late hour. 
 

13. Adjournment:  Trustee Christianson made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Trustee Kumbier.  Motion carried.  
President Struss adjourned the meeting at 8:42 p.m. 

 
 
 
Lisa Moen, Village Clerk  







 

 

CAMBRIDGE WATER, SEWER AND STORMWATER COMMITTEE 
COMMUNITY LIBRARY- LOCAL HISTORY ROOM 

 101 SPRING WATER ALLEY 
MINUTES 
6:30 pm 

OCTOBER 18, 2016 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call: Steve Struss called the meeting to order at 6:36 pm. Members 
present: Ken Raymond, Ted Kumbier, Dwight Christianson, Steve Johnson, Steve 
Struss. Village Staff: Dan Dudley, Veronica Rudychev, Vicki Redford. 
 

2. Proof of Posting: Agendas were posted in the upper level of the Amundson Community 
Center, Cambridge News Office, united Community Bank, Cambridge Post Office and 
the Village Website. 
 

3. Public Appearances: none 
 

4. Approval Of Consent Agenda   
a. Meeting Minutes: September 20, 2016 

Christianson made a motion to accept the consent agenda as presented. Kumbier seconded the 
motion. Motion carried on a 5-0 vote. 

 
5. Approval of Bills: 

Kumbier made a motion to accept the bills in the amount of $ 5,559.25. Raymond seconded the 
motion. Motion carried on a 5-0 vote. 

 
6. Old Business: 

 
a. Netwurx: Mary Behling has been working with Netwurx on a new contract. Struss 

added that there were concerns that the percent increase was not included. 
Behling will continue working with them and the contract will come before the 
committee for final approval. 
 

b. Road to Water Tower: An access road was put in at the beginning of construction 
of the Winery. The discussion was this road is the Winery’s responsibility. Fox 
will need to clean it up at the Winery’s expense. No action taken. 
 

c. U S Cellular: Mary Behling has been reviewing a possible agreement with U S 
Cellular. Rent for the Village is now $800 instead of $700. Discussion followed 
that in order to paint the tower, equipment may need to be removed from the 
tower. Struss spoke to Dixon and they said you can leave equipment on the 
tower intact. President Struss indicated U S Cellular is holding their ground 
requiring the village to pay an estimated $40,000.00 for the railing. Struss & 
Behling will continue to negotiate. The contract will come before the Water & 
Sewer committee for final approval. 
 

d. Generator: Kumbier started discussion with a bid from Rush Power Systems. The 
total did not include the concrete and was $44,630.00 More discussion on Ready 
Electric and John Adsit doing the project. Their informal bid was $20,137.00. 



 

 

With an additional $3415.00 to install the generator and get the permit. Because 
formal bids come at a large cost of around $2000.00 or more,  Administrator 
Rudychev didn’t think getting formal bids on this project were necessary.  

Kumbier made a motion to accept the Ready Electric agreement for the generator 

costing $20,137.00 and $3,415.00 for installation and permit. Raymond Seconded the 

motion. Motion carried on a 5-0 vote. 

e. Grease Traps: President Struss met with Tom TeBeest to review our Grease 
Trap Ordinance.  There was discussion that this ordinance just needs to be 
enforced. It was decided that a letter will be mailed out at the first of the year 
with instruction’s. 
 

7. New Business: 
a. Winery Agreement: This was said to be strictly an information update. 

 
8. Reports: 

a. Water & Sewer Superintendent: None 
 

9. Questions, Referrals To Staff Or Future Agenda Items: INI Study & budget for new 
business items. 

 
10. Adjournment : 

Christianson made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Kumbier seconded the motion. President 
Struss adjourned the meeting at 7:42 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Vicki Redford 
Utility Clerk 

 
 
 

 




















































































